
 

 

North Devon Council 
Brynsworthy Environment Centre 
Barnstaple 
North Devon   EX31 3NP 
 
K. Miles 

Chief Executive. 
 

 
 

 STRATEGY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting of the  Strategy and Resources Committee will be held as a Virtual – Online 
meeting on MONDAY, 6TH JULY, 2020 at 10.00 am. 
 
Members of the Strategy and Resources 
Committee 

Councillor Worden (Chair) 

 
Councillors Barker, Lane, Leaver, Lofthouse, Patrinos, Pearson, Prowse, L. Spear, 
Wilkinson and Yabsley 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Virtual meeting procedure - briefing and etiquette   

 Chair to report. 
 

2.   Apologies for absence   

3.   To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 1 June 2020 
(attached).  (Pages 5 - 14) 

4.   Items brought forward which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered by 
the meeting as a matter of urgency.   

5.   Declarations of Interests.   

 (Please telephone the Corporate and Community Services team to prepare a form 
for your signature before the meeting.  Interests must be re-declared when the 
item is called, and Councillors must leave the room if necessary). 

 

6.   To agree the agenda between Part 'A' and Part 'B' (Confidential Restricted 
Information).   

PART 'A' 

7.   Homelessness Update and Temporary Accommodation Pods  (Pages 15 - 18) 

 Report by Head of Environmental Health and Housing (attached). 
 

8.   Approval and Release of Section 106 Conservation Area Fund for 
Fremington Quay Wall Repair Project Phase 1  (Pages 19 - 22) 

 Report by Conservation Officer (attached). 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 

 
2 

 

9.   Approval and Release of Section 106 Public Open Space Funds - Kings 
Nympton  (Pages 23 - 26) 

 Report by Project, Procurement and Open Space Officer (attached). 
 

10.   Urgent Decisions Taken by the Chief Executive  (Pages 27 - 38) 

 To note the urgent decisions that have been made by the Chief Executive in 
accordance with paragraph 3.48, Annexe 2, Part 3 of the Constitution (attached).    

 

PART 'B' (CONFIDENTIAL RESTRICTED INFORMATION) 

Nil. 
 
 
 

 

If you have any enquiries about this agenda, please contact Corporate and 
Community Services, telephone 01271 388253 

 
 
 

26.06.20 
 



 
 

 
3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

North Devon Council protocol on recording/filming at Council meetings 
 
The Council is committed to openness and transparency in its decision-making. 
Recording is permitted at Council meetings that are open to the public. The Council 
understands that some members of the public attending its meetings may not wish to be 
recorded. The Chairman of the meeting will make sure any request not to be recorded is 
respected.  
 
The rules that the Council will apply are:  
 

1. The recording must be overt (clearly visible to anyone at the meeting) and must 
not disrupt proceedings. The Council will put signs up at any meeting where we 
know recording is taking place and a reminder will be issued at the 
commencement of virtual meetings. 

 
2. The Chairman of the meeting has absolute discretion to stop or suspend recording 

if, in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice proceedings at the meeting 
or if the person recording is in breach of these rules.  

 
3. We will ask for recording to stop if the meeting goes into ‘part B’ where the public 

is excluded for confidentiality reasons. In such a case, the person filming should 
leave the room ensuring all recording equipment is switched off. In a virtual 
meeting the public will be excluded from the meeting while in Part B. 

 
4. Any member of the public has the right not to be recorded. We ensure that 

agendas for, and signage at, Council meetings make it clear that recording can 
take place – anyone not wishing to be recorded must advise the Chairman at the 
earliest opportunity. Public contributions to virtual meetings will be recorded, 
unless, at the Chair’s discretion, recording is deemed in appropriate in accordance 
with point 2 above. 

 
5. The recording should not be edited in a way that could lead to misinterpretation or 

misrepresentation of the proceedings or in a way that ridicules or shows a lack of 
respect for those in the recording. The Council would expect any recording in 
breach of these rules to be removed from public view.  

 
Notes for guidance: 
 
Please contact either our Corporate and Community Services team or our 
Communications team in advance of the meeting you wish to record at so we can make 
all the necessary arrangements for you on the day.  
 
For more information contact the Corporate and Community Services team on 01271 
388253 or email memberservices@northdevon.gov.uk or the Communications Team 
on 01271 388278, email communications@northdevon.gov.uk. 



 
 

 
4 

 

 
 

 



 

Strategy and Resources Committee - 1 June 2020 
 

1 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of Strategy and Resources Committee held at Virtual - online 
meeting on Monday, 1st June, 2020 at 10.00 am 
 
PRESENT: Members: 

 
 Councillor Worden (Chair) 

 
 Councillors Barker, Lane, Leaver, Lofthouse, Patrinos, Pearson, 

Prowse, L. Spear, Wilkinson and Yabsley 
 

 Officers: 
 

 Chief Executive, Head of Resources, Lead Officer - Planning Policy, 
Senior Solicitor/Monitoring Officer, Service Lead - Environmental 
Protection, Head of Environmental Health and Housing, Head of 
Place and Project and Procurement Officer 
 

 Also Present: 
 

 Councillors Biederman, Davies, Gubb, Orange, Saxby, D. Spear and 
Tucker 

 
   
 

132.   VIRTUAL MEETINGS PROCEDURE - BRIEFING AND ETIQUETTE 
 

The Chair outlined the virtual meetings procedure and etiquette to the Committee 
and public in attendance. 

133.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

There were no apologies for absence received. 

134.   TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 4 MAY 2020 (ATTACHED). 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 4 May 2020 
(circulated previously) be approved as a correct record and signed by 
the Chair.  

135.   ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE 
CHAIR SHOULD BE CONSIDERED BY THE MEETING AS A 
MATTER OF URGENCY. 
 

(a) Council’s Financial Position 
 
The Head of Resources advised the Committee that he was required to provide 
Government with a monthly update financial return indicating the loss of income and 
identifying additional costs as a result of Covid-19.  Government assumed on their 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 1 June 2020 

 
 

 
2 

 

return template that Local Authorities would return to normal after July however, the 
Head of Resources outlined it was not expected that the levels of income would 
return to normal then due to the economy taking longer to recover.  The latest 
forecast projected was a potential loss of income of around £3.4m due to a reduction 
in fees and charges and a forecast reduction in collection of council tax and business 
rates.  There were additional costs in housing the homeless, employing agency staff 
in Waste and Recycling to ensure rounds were completed and to shield the 
vulnerable totalling around £600,000.  The Government had provided £1.018m in 
support, which was not enough to compensate for the predicted shortfall of £2.9m.  
The Council had unallocated reserves of £1.2m which was nowhere near enough to 
cover the losses.  If the Council used the allocated earmarked reserves, this would 
have an impact on the capital replacement of vehicles and improvements to ICT 
infrastructure and result in additional implications for the Council as there would be a 
need to have to borrow more funds to cover this if the reserves were not available 
any more.  Unless the Government provided more financial support, then a Section 
114 notice would need to be considered which would result in spending only on the 
essential services and to bridge the gap the Council may need to look at the services 
that could be cut back on. 
 
Selaine Saxby MP for North Devon addressed the Committee.  She advised that 
Robert Jenrick, Secretary of State for Housing Communities and Local Government 
was aware of the problem Councils face and believed support would be coming.  
She advised that as lockdown was being eased that where possible the Council 
needed to generate income such as opening car parks which showed that that the 
Council was doing all it could and not just asking for help.  The Government would 
produce briefing sheets for Districts and Parish Councils on issues such as PPE for 
cleaning of toilets.  Shops were expected to start opening on 15 June 2020.  
Overnight accommodation was due to restart in July and that there may be a chance 
that the use of second homes may be earlier, however she was pushing against this 
proposal.  The Tourism Industry had requested three weeks notice prior to the re-
opening of overnight accommodation.  The “R” (reproduction number) for North 
Devon was currently 0.8 and was high due to Care Homes.  Plymouth was higher at 
0.9 due to a higher density of population.  Social distancing was crucial in bringing 
the “R” number down.  Schools were doing a fantastic job in getting children back to 
school.   
 
In response to questions, the Chief Executive advised the following: 
 

 The level of recycling had increased for the months of April and May. 

 In relation to the re-opening of High Streets, the Government had issued 
guidance regarding the re-opening of public toilets and requirement for PPE.  
The Council had a role as an employer and to protect staff and members of 
the public.  He was comfortable with the level of PPE required and the Council 
kept up to date with the latest Government guidance. 

 Public conveniences in coastal areas had been re-opened. The Council 
needed to employ additional staff prior to opening further toilets. 

 
 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 1 June 2020 

 
 

 
3 

 

In response to questions, the Head of Resources advised the following: 
 

 Although the volume of collection of recyclable materials had increased, the 
forecast for the sale of recyclable materials income was lower than when the 
budget had been set due to a reduction in material prices.   

 Trade waste income was lower than forecast, but it was anticipated that it 
would start to recover as shops and businesses start to re-open. 

 Other Councils were all in the same financial position.  The Government had 
advised that there would be further tranches of funding, however the funding 
granted of £1m to-date was not sufficient to cover the forecast losses.  Unless 
there was some certainty of funding in the very near future or that the levels of 
income start to recover, then he would consider looking to issue the Section 
114 notice by the end of July 2020. 

 There was no current risk of the Council not being able to pay employees.  
However there was a need to address the funding shortfall and bridge the 
funding gap and potentially review non-essential expenditure moving 
forwards. 

136.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS. 
 

There were no declarations of interest received. 

137.   PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDERS DOG CONTROL 
 

The Committee considered a joint report by Environmental Protection Lead and 
Senior Solicitor (circulated previously) regarding undertaking a consultation exercise 
on setting up Public Spaces Protection Orders relating to dog controls. 
 
The Environmental Protection Service Lead highlighted the following: 
 

 The Council had received sufficient evidence in relation to anti social 
behaviour associated with dog fouling and control. 

 It was proposed that a consultation exercise be undertaken for a period of 8 
weeks which contained measures to enable certain restrictions and 
obligations to be imposed to help correct behaviour associated with 
irresponsible dog ownership. 

 Following consultation, the proposals would be reviewed and presented to the 
Committee for consideration in October 2020. 

 
In response to questions, the Environmental Protection Service Lead advised that 
the Tarka Trail was included within the consultation. 
 
In response to questions, the Chief Executive advised the following: 
 

 The dates of the consultation period as detailed in paragraph 4.5 of the report 
would be confirmed. 

 The first version of the consultation document had been circulated to 
Members in February 2020 and the responses received had been included 
within the report presented to the Committee on 4 May 2020.  Following the 
meeting on 4 May 2020, a Member working group had been held which 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 1 June 2020 

 
 

 
4 

 

included representatives from each political party and those Members who 
represented coastal areas.  The outcomes of working party had been 
incorporated within the consultation document appended to the report. 

 Concern was expressed regarding the proposal to defer consideration of the 
consultation document as a working party had already been held and delaying 
the consultation would put officers under pressure as the Council was 
awaiting confirmation regarding officers role in the Track and Trace system. 

 In accordance with the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014, 
the Council had to provide evidence of anti-social behaviour before 
implementing a public space protection order.  Evidence had been provided 
by the Council’s Environmental Protection Wardens. 

 The Communications Team would be involved in publicising the consultation 

 
In response to a question, the Head of Environmental Health and Housing advised 
that the impact of dog fouling on water quality was outside of the scope of a public 
spaces protection order. 
 

RESOLVED that the vote be taken by a recorded vote. 
 

RESOLVED that the Head of Service (Environmental Health and 
Housing) be authorised to undertake a consultation exercise using 
the proposals set out in Appendix A of the report subject to the 
following: 
 
(a) That reference to the significant and positive public health, 

social and economic benefits of dog ownership be included 
within the introduction of the consultation document; 
 

(b) That the introduction to the consultation document as detailed 
on page 21 of the report be amended to move the 5th 
paragraph “The Council wants to look closely at the need for 
any controls……..” to near the beginning of the introduction; 
 

(c) That the numbering of the question on page 28 of the report 
be amended from “6” to “12”; 
 

(d) That the length of the consultation period as detailed in 
schedule of dates in paragraph 4.5 of the report be confirmed 
and amended accordingly for either 8 or 9 weeks. 
 

Voting for the motion: 
 
Councillors Barker, Lane, Lofthouse, Patrinos, Pearson, Prowse, L. Spear, 
Wilkinson, Worden and Yabsley. 
 
Voting against the motion: 
 
Nil. 
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 1 June 2020 

 
 

 
5 

 

Abstained from voting: 
 
Councillor Leaver 
 
Totals: 10 For, 0 Against and 1 abstained 

138.   DEVON DISTRICTS PROCUREMENT STRATEGY 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Project, Procurement and Open Space 
Officer (circulated previously) regarding the adoption of the Devon Districts 
Procurement Strategy. 
 
The Project, Procurement and Open Space Officer highlighted the following: 
 

 The Devon Districts Procurement Authorities have been working 
collaboratively to draft the third iteration of a joint Devon Districts Procurement 
Strategy. 

 The Strategy sought to align with the identified themes of the National 
Procurement Strategy as detailed in paragraph 4.4 of the report. 

 The action plan in the strategy (page 47) set out the outcome and action 
identified for each key theme and it was the responsibility of each District 
Council to monitor and provide a response for each action. 

 
In response to questions, the Project, Procurement and Open Space Officer advised 
the following: 
 

 That the community and voluntary sector could be included within each 
action.  

 The sustainable matrix used for procurement could also include climate 
change and carbon reduction. 

 No changes had been made to the timescales for procurement and the 
Constitution had not been changed.  The Strategy just allowed for due 
consideration to be given. 

 
RESOLVED that the Devon District Procurement Strategy 2019-2022 
be adopted. 

139.   DEVON HOME CHOICE AND LOCAL LETTINGS POLICIES 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Senior Housing Needs Officer (circulated 
previously) regarding obtaining delegated authority for officers to agree Local 
Lettings Policies in accordance with the Devon Home Choice Policy and Procedures. 
 
The Chief Executive advised that the Committee did not have delegated authority to 
take the decision as it was a permanent change to officers delegations and therefore 
a recommendation would need to be made to Council. 
 

RECOMMENDED that delegated authority to the Head of 
Environmental Health and Housing Services be approved to agree 
Local Lettings Policies with Registered Providers, as set out and in 
accordance with Devon Home Choice Policy and Procedures. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 1 June 2020 

 
 

 
6 

 

140.   GLASS COLLECTION AND RECYCLING 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Chief Executive (circulated previously) 
regarding the roll out of a separate glass container receptacle across the District for 
glass collection. 
 
The Chief Executive highlighted the following: 
 

 As part of the ongoing review of processes within the Council, a review of the 
issues around missed collections had been undertaken.  The review involved 
engaging with employees directly providing the service to ascertain what 
changes they thought could be introduced to reduce missed collections. 

 One idea raised was to try to encourage the public to separate glass from 
plastic and tins.  It was felt that this would speed up the efficiency of the 
rounds and would also cut down on injuries to the workforce caused by 
broken glass. 

 A trial had recently been undertaken in Yelland prior to lockdown where two 
boxes had been issued for glass and one for plastic and tins.  Employees had 
advised that this had saved time. 

 Previously a trial was also undertaken using hessian sacks which was popular 
with the public but did not speed up rounds as they could not use the bags to 
push the recycling into the stillage. 

 Following lockdown and the Council providing a community response, the 
Council had ceased receiving missed collections via the telephone. 

 During the lockdown the recycling service had run well and the public had 
been encouraged to separate their glass using their own separate container.  
Approximately 10-15% of households now separated glass. 

 The costs of rolling out additional boxes to the District were estimated to be 
£80,000 and that a 15% contingency be allowed as detailed in paragraph 4.12 
of the report. 

 
In response to questions, the Chief Executive advised the following: 
 

 That the proposed boxes for the collection of glass materials were blue and 
smaller and could sit inside the existing large plastic box. 

 It was difficult to quantify how much financially the Council would save, 
however it was anticipated that the amount of overtime claimed by employees 
would reduce and that the efficiency and capacity of the service would 
improve. 

 The Council could send out communications to advise that a separate box 
would be provided for the collection of glass and to contact the Council if they 
would prefer to use their own receptacle.  It would not be an opt in service. 

 It was unlikely that the percentage of households currently separating glass 
would increase without the Council providing separate receptacles. 

 There was an approximately 8 week period for the procurement of the 
additional boxes.  

 40,000 boxes would be procured.  It was not anticipated that every household 
would be provided with an additional box, as some households would use 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 1 June 2020 

 
 

 
7 

 

their own receptacles.  This would provide spare boxes which the Council 
could provide to households in new housing developments and for when 
replacements were required. 

 If the Council went out to tender to procure the additional boxes rather than 
the recommended route in the report, it would cost an additional 35p for each 
box. 
 

In response to questions, the Head of Resources advised the following: 
 

 The last quarterly financial monitoring report presented to the Committee 
highlighted that a significant amount of overtime had been paid to enable 
rounds to be completed.  This proposed change would enable the crews to 
complete rounds quicker and therefore a reduction in the overtime.  It would 
also enable the processing hall to manage the collected recycling materials 
quicker. 

 This would create capacity for the teams to take on additional rounds for new 
housing developments moving forwards.  

 The employment of additional employees if we had to put further rounds on 
would have an impact on revenue.  This was an investment to save revenue 
costs in the long term.  

 15% contingency had been included to allow for any price increases on the 
boxes.  The budget cost would be funded from the Strategic Contingency 
Reserve. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
(a) That the roll out of a separate glass container receptacle across 

the District and a revenue budget of £92,000 to be funded from the 
Strategic Contingency Reserve be approved; 
 

(b) That the Council’s Contract Procedure rules to allow a direct 
award if financially beneficial be approved. 

  
 

141.   AIR QUALITY SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Head of Place (circulated previously) 
regarding the adoption of an amended Air Quality Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD). 
 
The Lead Officer (Planning Policy) highlighted the following: 
 

 Summary of responses received to the draft Air Quality SPD as detailed in 
Appendix A. 

 Amended version of the SPD incorporating the proposed amendments as 
detailed in Appendix B.  

 The main issues raised as part of the consultation as detailed in paragraph 
4.4 of the report. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 1 June 2020 

 
 

 
8 

 

 The Air Quality SPD would also need to be formally adopted by Torridge 
District Council. 

 
In response to a question, the Lead Officer (Planning Officer) advised that he was 
unable to confirm a date when Torridge District Council would consider the adoption 
of the SPD.  However, he would confirm the date following the meeting. 
 
The Committee noted a typographical error contained on page 84, paragraph 2.5 (2) 
and should have stated “Development will be supported where it does not result…..”. 
 

RESOLVED that the amended Air Quality SPD as set out in 
Appendix B be formally adopted as a supplementary planning 
document and be treated as a material consideration in determining 
relevant planning applications subject to paragraph 2.5 (2) on page 
84 being amended to “Development will be supported where it does 
not result…..”.. 

142.   COASTAL CONCORDAT 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Head of Place (circulated previously) 
regarding the signing of a new Coastal Concordat with the Department for 
Environment Food and Rural Affairs (Defra). 
 

RESOLVED that the Council signs the Coastal Concordat with Defra 
and that interested Members and the Lead Member for Coastal 
Communities be invited to future training with the relevant concordat 
bodies. 

143.   BUSINESS RATES RELIEFS, COUNCIL TAX RELIEFS AND 
BUSINESS GRANTS 
 

The Committee considered a report by the Head of Resources (circulated previously) 
regarding the adoption of a revised policy for the granting of Discretionary Non-
Domestic Rates Relief and two new policies for the administration of business grants 
and the Council Tax discretionary reductions. 
 
The Head of Resources highlighted the following: 
 

 Further measures had been announced by the Government due to the Covid 
19 crisis.  These included extended business reliefs, business grants and a 
Council Tax hardship fund.  

 The revised policy for the granting of Discretionary Non-Domestic Rates 
Relief as detailed in Appendix 1.  On 11 March the Government announced 
that due to the Covid 19 crisis it would increase the Business Rates Retail 
Discount from 50% to 100% and extend it to include the leisure and hospitality 
sectors.  The Government also announced a Business Rates Nursery 
Discount.  Both discounts applied for 2020/21 only.  The Council awarded 
£20.4m and 1134 businesses had been granted 100% relief.  

 The Small Business Grant and Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant Policy for 
2020/21 as detailed in Appendix 2.  The Council had received £51m to pay 
grants to eligible businesses.  As of 29 May 2020 the Council had paid out 

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 1 June 2020 

 
 

 
9 

 

£37.8m.  700 (17%) of the total eligible businesses had not yet applied.  This 
list would be circulated to Councillors to help with contacting those businesses 
to encourage them to apply for the grant.  The Federation of Small 
Businesses would also be sent the list to assist with contacting these 
businesses to help the Council achieve paying 100% of the grant received 
from the Government to these eligible businesses. 

 Council Tax Discretionary Reductions (Appendix 3).  The Government had 
awarded the Council £692,000 to support economically vulnerable people by 
awarding £150 relief to council tax bills to claimants who currently pay a small 
proportion of Council Tax which was approximately 3,200 claimants.  If further 
claims were made for Council Tax reductions, then those claimants would 
also receive £150 credit.  The Policy also included a flood recovery framework 
to provide Council Tax reductions and for other cases such as individuals 
suffering exceptional hardship. 

 The team had worked extremely hard and over weekends to ensure that the 
applications for grants were processed quickly.   

 The separate Discretionary Grant scheme for businesses had been launched 
today and had been publicised on our website and using social media. 

 
In response to a question, the Head of Resources advised that car parks managed 
by other organisations were not eligible for the business grants as to meet the 
criteria the business must have premises.  Parish Councils were also not eligible to 
apply for the grants. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
(a) That the adoption of the revised policy for the granting of 

Discretionary Non-Domestic Rates Relief, to include the 
additional business rate measures with effect from 1 April 
2020 (shown in appendices K and L of Appendix 1) be 
approved; 
 

(b) That the adoption of the policy for the granting of the Small 
Business Grant and Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant with 
effect from 1 April 2020 (Appendix 2) be approved; 
 

(c) That the adoption of the S13A (1) (c) Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 Policy for the administration of the Council 
Tax Discretionary Reductions with effect from 1 April 2020 
(Appendix 3) be approved.  

  

144.   URGENT DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

The Committee noted the urgent decisions that had been made by the Chief 
Executive in accordance with paragraph 3.48, Annexe 2, Part 3 of the Constitution 
(circulated previously) regarding the Hardship Relief Fund; financial assistance for 
Parkwood Leisure; Hackney Carriage and Private Hire MOTs and garage tests; 
mechanical examination for taxi and Private Hire drivers; proposed derogation to the 
Council’s Hackney Carriage and Private Hire licensing policy 2016 concerning 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



 
Strategy and Resources Committee - 1 June 2020 

 
 

 
10 

 

maximum age of Hackney Carriage vehicles; licensing of new or replacement 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicles when social distancing measures due to 
Covid-19 are in place; badges and plates for licensed Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire vehicles; refund of fees for Hackney Carriage vehicles, drivers and operators 
due to the impact of Covid-19; fees for temporary event notices (TENs) and car 
parking and public toilets. 
 
The Chief Executive advised that the urgent decisions taken had all been in 
response to the Covid 19 crisis. 
 
Chair 
The meeting ended at 12.31 pm 
 
NOTE: These minutes will be confirmed as a correct record at the next meeting of 
the Committee. 
 

Page 14

Agenda Item 3



 
 
 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 

 

REPORT TO: STRATEGY AND RESOURCES 

 

DATE: 
 

6th July 2020 
 

TOPIC: HOMELESSNESS UPDATE AND TEMPORARY 
ACCOMMODATION PODS 

REPORT BY: JEREMY MANN, HEAD OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
AND HOUSING 

 

1 INTRODUCTION 

1.1   As a result of Covid-19 there has been a requirement to re-prioritise our need of 
rough sleeper provision and in response to the recently announced additional 
£105million funding made available from Ministry of Housing Communities & 
Local Government (MHCLG). 

In light of this funding is being sought from MHCLG for North Devon Council to 
purchase 5   

        new individual units of bespoke night by night temporary accommodation for   
        rough sleepers in the form of emergency shelter pods at a cost of £6000 each. 

 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 Approval is given in principal for the purchase of the shelter pods subject to 
external funding being received and support re identifying suitable locations for 
them to be sited.  This will become just one of the Council’s solutions to bring 
rough sleepers off the streets and help them to engage with all required 
services. 

2.2 Members note the general update on homelessness in light of Covid-19 
provided by the Head of Environmental Health and Housing. 

 

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 Rough sleeping has remained a continuous community concern and with the  
      funding potentially available from government it will enable the Council to provide 
bespoke accommodation to start people on their journey to ending rough sleeping. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



 
 Rough Sleeping is especially prevalent during Covid-19 as it is predicted that there 
will be increased homelessness and we, as a Local Authority, will have additional 
duties imposed us on that we are required to meet.  Agreeing in principal subject to 
the funding being in place enables the Council to act quickly to acquire the pods for 
a much needed provision. 

 

 

4 REPORT 

4.1  Our current rough sleeper number at any one time according to Government 
submission 24. 

    To date the Local Authority has struggled to provide temporary accommodation  
    when required for rough sleepers aside from our winter provision – Safe Sleep. 
 
    This is for a number of reasons: 
 

     A large number of clients do not fit the current eligibility criteria as they are 

    not deemed to be in Priority Need and / or classed as Intentionally    

    Homeless.  This precludes them from the normal route of temporary  

    accommodation 

 

     Demands on temporary accommodation capacity 

 

     Any available temporary accommodation not fitting our clients’ needs 

Following Covid-19 Central Government have made the decision that North Devon 
Council are unable to operate our winter shelter – Safe Sleep this year. 
 
During winter when temperatures are predicted to be at zero or below for 3 
consecutive nights, and in addition other severe weather, North Devon Council are 
mandated to provide shelter, for Rough Sleepers. 
 
Recognising the above and in addition our duties to safeguard and protect 
vulnerable members of our community the Local Authority needed to identify 
options that are both achievable, suitable and fall within the current pandemic 
regulations with the recognition that it is much easier to engage with clients when 
they are in a less chaotic environment.   
 
5 pod spaces of accommodation is a very good start to fulfilling these duties. 
 
Each client accessing a pod will receive daily support and this in turn will manage 
any potential risks such as anti-social behaviour which may be attributed to its use. 
The clients will be able to access the pods on a short-term basis only whilst clients 
are assessed and moved through accommodation pathways. 
 

    Immediate benefits include; 

Page 16

Agenda Item 7



 

 Envisaged Local Authority cost savings by reducing need for emergency B&B 
accommodation. 

 

 Reduced visibility of rough sleepers 
 

 Reduced vulnerability of rough sleepers 
 

 A fast flexible, innovative solution to meet social need 
 

 Provides secure, safe temporary accommodation which benefits well-being and 
will reduce strain on health and social services 
 

 Presents opportunities for collaborative working for public social benefit 
 
Once fully operational there is no reason that in the future the scheme could not be 
expanded with consideration given to local businesses, non-governmental 
organisations and Churches to essentially sponsor a pod. 

 
Pod specifications 
Access is controlled via a coded smart lock. 
Each pod is timber frame with insulation encapsulated outside with fibreglass and 
grey fire retardant top coat. 
Each pod exterior measures 2.4M x 1.82M with a weight of approximately 700kg. 
The interior is a ply finish plus zero flame fire retardant coating and a fire retardant 
door. Vinyl flooring, laminate panelling, with a cassette chemical toilet and bed 
platform. 
Each pod has an LED light, USB phone charger, smoke detector – complete with 
10 year battery. Solar panel with charger light. 
 

 

 

5 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1   Homelessness grant funding being in place would result in the purchase of the 
Pods  being fully funded by MHCLG, NDC resource implications will be in the 
form of staff time and ongoing maintenance costs. It is hoped that housing 
benefit can be claimed to support with this. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



    With each Pod is a £500 budget need to help to cover maintenance costs. 

 

6 EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT 

6.1 (Please detail if there are/are not any equalities implications anticipated as a 
result of this report.  If so, please complete the Equality Impact Assessment 
Summary form available on Insite and email to the Corporate and Community 
Services Team at equality@northdevon.gov.uk ). 

7 CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT 

Article or Part 3 
Annexe 1 
paragraph 

Referred or 
delegated power? 

  

8 STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

8.1  This report contains no confidential information or exempt information under the 
provisions of Schedule 12A of 1972 Act. 

9 BACKGROUND PAPERS 

9.1 The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report: 

o  

The background papers are available for inspection and kept by the author of 
the report. 

10 STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE 

10.1 The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all appropriate 
Councillors and Officers. 

Author:  Natasha Rowland Date: 25 June 2020 
Reference: 

Page 18

Agenda Item 7

mailto:equality@northdevon.gov.uk


 
 
 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 

 

1 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This report seeks to allocate the S106 Conservation funds arising from the 
development of Fremington Army Camp  towards the Fremington Quay Wall 
Repair Project Phase 1. 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 That Strategy and Resources allocates £30,000 to the Fremington Quay Wall 
Repair Project Phase 1 which is to be administered by the Property and 
Technical Services  Unit. 

2.2 Subject to approval of 2.1 above, that Strategy and Resources recommends 
Council vary the Capital programme by £30,000 and that funds be released for 
the Project. 

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 To allocate funds in line with the requirements of the S106 agreement. 

3.2 To repair and make safe the Quay Wall, conserving the heritage asset and 
ensuring continued and safe public access to the area. 

4 REPORT 

4.1 When planning application 57519 was passed for the redevelopment of 
Fremington Army Camp, the approval was subject to a Section 106 agreement. 
One of the provisions of this was a S106 ‘Conservation Area Contribution’ of 
£30,000 which was received in December 2015. The contribution needs to be 
spent within five years of the date of receipt. The original intention was that the 

REPORT TO: STRATEGY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 

DATE: 

TOPIC: 

6TH JULY 2020 

APPROVAL AND RELEASE OF S106 CONSERVATION 
AREA FUND FOR FREMINGTON QUAY WALL 
REPAIR PROJECT PHASE 1 

 

REPORT BY: CONSERVATION OFFICER 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



fund should be spent within the Fremington village Conservation Area, which 
included the Army Camp. The most suitable target for the money was the grade 
II listed walled garden and grade II* gazebo which adjoined the army camp, and 
which was in need of repair work. Discussions have taken place with the 
owners of this structure, and unfortunately, despite the potential availability of 
S106 assistance, it has not been possible to instigate the repair work within the 
required time scale. 

4.2 An alternative use for the funding has been identified at Fremington Quay, which 
is just to the east of the Army camp development. This is in a separate 
Conservation Area, but both Barratt Homes, the developer who made the 
contribution, and the parish council, have confirmed that they have no objection 
to the slight variation.  

4.3 The Quay structure at Fremington dates from approximately 1848 when the Taw 
Vale Railway and Dock Company opened a railway along the southern edge of 
the River Taw to carry goods and passengers from the newly constructed Quay 
to Barnstaple. The railway finally closed in 1982, and the track-bed passed to 
Devon County Council, subsequently becoming the Tarka Trail. The area to the 
west of the track bed, including the Quay structure and slipway, was acquired 
by North Devon Council in 2000. The Conservation Area at Fremington Quay 
was first designated in 1997. At that time, the Quay area, station and other 
buildings were redundant. Since then the Station has been redeveloped as a 
café, houses have been built, and the area has become well used and is 
enjoyed as a refreshment facility on the Tarka Trail long distance footpath and 
cycle  trail. The area is also much visited by local residents. The Conservation 
Area was reviewed and the boundary extended in 2010.  

4.4 The Quay wall borders the informal car parking area to the north of the café, and 
there is a slipway at its northern end. Just south of the slipway, sections of the 
stone facing to the Quay structure built wall have bellied out and collapsed onto 
the beach. This has exposed the rubble core, causing structural instability. The 
wall is owned by North Devon Council.  Repair works are urgently necessary to 
prevent further deterioration to the structure, and to keep the area safe and 
useable by the public.  

4.5 The first phase of works are programmed for the summer of 2020 and will 
comprise initial stabilisation and investigation to the value of £30,000. These 
works will be designed to prevent further deterioration as an urgent need, and 
to allow structural investigations to give a better indication of definitive 
quantities and works needed for the next phase of work, which is planned for 
autumn/winter 2020. A further capital funding bid will be made for this work. It is 
proposed that the S106 funding is allocated to the first phase of work.   

5 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 The project cost for phase I of the repair of the wall is estimated to be £30,000. 
Quotations are still being sought from contractors, with delays in the process 
being caused by the Covid-19 situation. It is proposed that the £30,000 S106 
contribution be used to fund this phase of the project. The work will be 

Page 20

Agenda Item 8



overseen by the Senior Engineer and is programmed to take place this 
summer.  

6 EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT 

6.1 There are no equalities implications anticipated as a result of this report 

7 CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT 

Article or Part 3 
Annexe 1 
paragraph 

Referred or 
delegated power? 

Part 3. Annexe 1. 

1(d) 

Delegated 

8 STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

8.1  This report contains no confidential information or exempt information under the 
provisions of Schedule 12A of 1972 Act. 

9 BACKGROUND PAPERS 

9.1 The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report: 

Fremington Quay Conservation Area Character Appraisal 2010 

Section 106 agreement relating to planning application number 57519 

Email correspondence from Barratt Homes 

Title deed for Fremington Quay 

The background papers are available for inspection and kept by the author of 
the report. 

10 STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE 

10.1 The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all appropriate 
Councillors and Officers. 

Author: Collette Hall   Date: 11th June 2020 
Reference:  

Page 21

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Open 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 

 

REPORT TO: STRATEGY & RESOURCES 

Date: 06 July 2020 

TOPIC: APPROVAL & RELEASE OF S106 PUBLIC OPEN 
SPACE FUNDS – KINGS NYMPTON 

REPORT BY: PROJECT, PROCUREMENT AND OPEN SPACE 
OFFICER 

 

1 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This report seeks to allocate S106 public open space funds towards one project 
in Kings Nympton. 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 That Strategy & Resources allocates: 

2.1.1 £8,304.27 to Kings Nympton Parish Council towards the Provision of play 
equipment at Kings Nympton Playing Field. 

2.2 Subject to approval of 2.1.1 above, that Strategy & Resources Committee 
recommends Council vary the capital programme by £8,304.27 and that funds 
be released, subject to a Funding Agreement upon such terms and conditions 
as may be agreed by the Senior Solicitor, for external projects.  

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 To allocate funds in line with the requirement of S106 agreements. 

3.2 To protect and enhance public open space, including land and buildings. 

4 REPORT 

4.1 Kings Nympton Parish Council – Kings Nympton Playing Field 

North Devon Council recently provided S106 public open space funds to Kings 
Nympton Parish Council to undertake improvement works at the playing field in 
Kings Nympton.  These works included improvements to the access of the 
playing field by installing a hardstanding concrete footpath at the entrance 
instead of the informal grass/mud surface creating enhanced ease of access 
for push chair and wheelchair users. 

Page 23

Agenda Item 9



The next phase of the project now seeks funding from the same development 
to provide play equipment within the playing field to improve the area and 
extend the use of the playing field, led by Kings Nympton Parish Council.   

The Parish Council have been in collaboration with Friends of Kings Nympton 
School, the Pre School and Mother and Toddler Group to gather research on a 
range of play equipment that would best suit and benefit the community. As 
part of this community consultation, a zip wire was the preferred option. 

The improvement will bring more users to the playing field as well as benefiting 
the children of the community. 

5 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 Kings Nympton Parish Council – Kings Nympton Playing Field 

Financial: The total project cost is £9527.70 

That £8,304.27 be funded from the S106 capital budget from the following 
sources: 

Development 
Description 

Application Number Amount 

Land Adj. Villa Park, 
Kings Nympton 

63692 £8,304.27 

 Total £8,304.27 

The remaining £1223.43 will be funded by the Playing Field Committee bank 
surplus. Any overspend be met by the Parish Council. 

6 CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT 

Article or Appendix 
and paragraph 

Referred or 
delegated power? 

Part 3. Annexe 1.  
1 (d) 

Delegated 

7 STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 

7.1  This report contains no confidential information or exempt information under the 
provisions of Schedule 12A of 1972 Act. 

8 BACKGROUND PAPERS 

8.1 The background papers are available for inspection and kept by the author of 
the report. 

Page 24

Agenda Item 9



9 STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE 

9.1 The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all appropriate 
Councillors and Officers. 

Author: S.Hambleton   Date: 08 June 2020 
Reference: I:\Projects\Open Space & S106\Reports\Strategy & Resources\July 
2020 

Page 25

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
 

REGISTER OF URGENT 
DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL CONSTITUTION 
– Part 3 Annexe 2: Officer Delegations – 

Chief Executive 

 
Reference No:               
 

 
 
1) SUBJECT:   
Barnstaple pedestrian and cycle room improvements 
 
2) REQUESTED DECISION: 
To comment upon a consultation issued by DCC and express support for the DCC 
preferred solution  
 
 
3) STATEMENT OF THE REASONS FOR THE REQUEST AND WHY IT IS 

URGENT: 
As the country moves into the “recovery” phase of the Covid-19 crisis, there is a very 
strong feeling that there have been substantial environmental benefits as a result of 
lockdown giving rise to less traffic movements and that plans should be put in place 
to introduce measures to increase pedestrian and cycle trips. 
 
Statutory guidance has been issued by central government which requires Highway 
authorities to consider measures to increase road space for pedestrians and cyclists. 
 
As a result DCC are considering a series of temporary measures to support social 
distancing for walkers and cyclists in Barnstaple aimed at reprioritising roadspace to 
support alternative travel options, public safety and social distancing in the town 
centre as a busy regional hub. 
 
Current proposals are: 

 Temporary pedestrianisation of The Strand, Cross Street, Butchers Row, 
Lower Boutport Street and part of Queen Street between 10am and 4pm as 
shown on the attached plan.  

 Measures on Longbridge A3125 in Barnstaple in order to improve the footpath 
and cyclepath provision.  The preferred option is the option A – total vehicular 
closure of the A3125 Longbridge. 

 Installation of  cycle racks in town and at outlying business parks 
 
Rationale for proposals: 

 The Department for Transport has clarified that local authorities have the 
powers to reallocate road space, instigate local road closures, temporary cycle 
lanes or expand the footway to provide more space for cycling and walking. 

 The proposals are part of the measures required to ensure social distancing 
guidance can be adhered to. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 10



 The pedestrianisation of Cross Street / Butchers Row has been consulted on 
during the development of the Barnstaple vision and is included in the Future 
High Streets Fund business case. The proposal is a slight extension of the 
scheme which makes sense under the new guidance. 

 If implemented establishments along Butchers Row could potentially put tables 
and chairs out in the loading bays, increasing their ability to trade whilst still 
practicing social distancing. (relaxation of enforcement by DCC and NDC 
would be required). 

 Once the market re-opens it will do so with the new arrangements in place 
making changes easier. 

 The Longbridge was identified as a critical local road corridor and pinchpoint 
for urban travel. This impact will also be exacerbated by the emergency 
closure of the old iron bridge cycle crossing, which will mean diverting more 
cycling and walking trips via Rock Park and the Long Bridge.  Vehicle / 
pedestrian conflict is an identified issue on the Longbridge. The new 
temporary measures therefore provide an opportunity to test some solutions to 
the problem. 

 
The issue is urgent as the High street is anticipated to open on the 1st June and 
DCC are working to a timetable of implementation to coincide with this. 

 
 
4) FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  (NOTE: Please state if there are any financial 

implications.  If so, state whether there are sufficient funds within the agreed 
budget.  If there are insufficient funds please state how the decision will be 
financed). 

 
The Council has received funding of £86k to be used for the re-opening of our town 
centres and so some funding will be required for signage etc.  
 
5) ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED: 
As an alternative, NDC could reject all suggestions put forward but these ar 
temporary measures and now seems an ideal time to experiment and see if these 
ideas have merit. 
 
 
6) A RECORD OF ANY CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARED: 
None 
 
 
7) A NOTE OF ANY DISPENSATION IF GRANTED: 
 
N/A 
 
8) LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS (but not including published works or those 

which disclose exempt or confidential information (as defined in paragraph 10.4 
and 10.5 of the Access to Information Procedural Rules Part 4 of the Constitution): 

 
Plans and options from DCC 
 

Page 28

Agenda Item 10



 
 
 
 
 
10) CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN: 
 

The following have been consulted on this urgent decision: 
 

Consultee Consulted 
Yes/No 

Date 

Leader of Council (or Deputy Leader) Y 19.5.20 

Chair of Committee (with the 
Authority to take the decision) 

(or Vice-Chair) 

  

Lead Member Y 19.5.20 

Ward Member(s) Y 19.5.20 

Head of Service (name)   

Finance   

Legal   

 
 
11) OFFICER REQUESTING URGENT DECISION TO BE TAKEN BY THE CHIEF   

EXECUTIVE: 
Hannah Harrington 
 
12) APPROVED BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE:  YES  
 
 
13) DATE OF DECISION:  
 
20.5.20 
 
14) CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S COMMENTS: 
 
The idea of a pedestrianised Long Bridge raised a lot of possibilities that could be 

explored.  The proposals also support the Council’s own plans that are developing 
for the town centre and will help in allowing businesses to re-open safely.  Now is 
an ideal time to explore the options for increasing space for pedestrians and 
cyclists and so I am fully supportive. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 10



 
 
15) DATE TO BE PRESENTED TO STRATEGY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE: 
 
6 July 2020 

 
GUIDANCE NOTES 
 
 
NOTE:  
 
PROCEDURE FOR URGENT DECISIONS: 
 
1. Completed form to be passed to the Chief Executive following consultation with 

the interested parties.  
 
2. If a decision is specific to a Ward, efforts should be made to ascertain the views of 

the local Councillor (s). 
 

3. The Chief Executive will make his decision. 
 
 
 
 
PROCEDURE FOR URGENT DECISION MAKING AS PER THE CONSTITUTION  
 
Officer Delegations: the Chief Executive: 
 
Urgent Decision Making  
 
3.48 To take a decision on any matter falling within the remit of any Committee in 

cases of urgency where it is not reasonably practicable to obtain prior approval  
of a Committee SUBJECT TO:  

 
3.48.1 the prior consultation, where practicable, with the Leader or Deputy Leader and 

the Chair or Vice Chair of the relevant Committee, and  
 
3.48.2 the proviso that this power will not extend to the determination of any application  

submitted pursuant to the Planning Acts or under the Licensing Act 2003 or the 
Gambling Act 2005, and  

 
3.48.3 the decision being reported to the next meeting of the relevant Committee and the 

next meeting of Strategy and Resources Committee. 

Page 30

Agenda Item 10



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
 

REGISTER OF URGENT 
DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL CONSTITUTION 
– Part 3 Annexe 2: Officer Delegations – 

Chief Executive 

 
Reference No:               
 

 
 
1) SUBJECT:   
Barnstaple pedestrian and cycle room improvements 
 
2) REQUESTED DECISION: 
To withdraw support for the proposal to pedestrianise the Long Bridge but to support 
the measures to extend pedestrianisation in Cross Street and Butchers Row. 
 
 
3) STATEMENT OF THE REASONS FOR THE REQUEST AND WHY IT IS 

URGENT: 
 
The Council previously indicated that it was supportive of DCC proposals to 
pedestrian the Long Bridge and to extend pedestrianisation along Cross Street and 
Butchers Row on a temporary basis.  The Council made clear that support was to be 
based on monitoring taking place of traffic flows, regular reporting to the Council on 
the impacts and the ability to withdraw from or change the scheme at any time. 
 
Since that time, no further details of the proposals have been published and no 
formal public consultation has taken place.  At the same time public and business 
opposition to the idea has grown considerably. 
 
It is appreciated that the matter had to be dealt with quickly by DCC but the Council 
now consider that because of that lack of public engagement, confidence in the 
proposals is at such a point as to make them very unlikely to find support.  The 
Council therefore consider that its support should now be withdrawn although it would 
be open to further discussions about alternative proposals. 
 
The matter is considered to be urgent as the public and local businesses require a 
clear view from the District Council as quickly as possible. 
 
 
4) FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  (NOTE: Please state if there are any financial 

implications.  If so, state whether there are sufficient funds within the agreed 
budget.  If there are insufficient funds please state how the decision will be 
financed). 

 
There are none 
 
5) ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED: 

Page 31

Agenda Item 10
Appendix A



The Council could maintain its previous stance of support but has not received 
assurance about reverting to the current position during the 3 month trial and to do so 
would ignore the considerable opposition now being expressed.  
 
 
6) A RECORD OF ANY CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARED: 
None 
 
 
7) A NOTE OF ANY DISPENSATION IF GRANTED: 
 
N/A 
 
8) LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS (but not including published works or those 

which disclose exempt or confidential information (as defined in paragraph 10.4 
and 10.5 of the Access to Information Procedural Rules Part 4 of the Constitution): 

 
Previous urgent decision 
 
 
10) CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN: 
 

The following have been consulted on this urgent decision: 
 

Consultee Consulted 
Yes/No 

Date 

Leader of Council (or Deputy Leader) Y 18.6.20 

Chair of Committee (with the 
Authority to take the decision) 

(or Vice-Chair) 

  

Lead Member Y 18.6.20 

Ward Member(s) N  

Head of Service (name)   

Finance   

Legal   

 
 
11) OFFICER REQUESTING URGENT DECISION TO BE TAKEN BY THE CHIEF   

EXECUTIVE: 
Leader/Deputy Leader 
 
12) APPROVED BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE:  YES  
 
13) DATE OF DECISION:  
 
18th June 2020 

Page 32

Agenda Item 10
Appendix A



 
14) CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S COMMENTS: 
 
Whilst I was previously willing to explore options for the Long Bridge, it is clear now 

that the level of opposition is such that any proposals are highly likely to fail.  I am 
also concerned that NDC has not received the assurances previously sought and 
about the fact that although the possibility of the proposals is widely known, DCC 
has not published any detail to enable the public to make an informed decision.  

 
 
15) DATE TO BE PRESENTED TO STRATEGY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE: 
 
6 July 2020 

 
GUIDANCE NOTES 
 
NOTE:  
 
PROCEDURE FOR URGENT DECISIONS: 
 
1. Completed form to be passed to the Chief Executive following consultation with 

the interested parties.  
 
2. If a decision is specific to a Ward, efforts should be made to ascertain the views of 

the local Councillor (s). 
 

3. The Chief Executive will make his decision. 
 
 
 
 
PROCEDURE FOR URGENT DECISION MAKING AS PER THE CONSTITUTION  
 
Officer Delegations: the Chief Executive: 
 
Urgent Decision Making  
 
3.48 To take a decision on any matter falling within the remit of any Committee in 

cases of urgency where it is not reasonably practicable to obtain prior approval  
of a Committee SUBJECT TO:  

 
3.48.1 the prior consultation, where practicable, with the Leader or Deputy Leader and 

the Chair or Vice Chair of the relevant Committee, and  
 
3.48.2 the proviso that this power will not extend to the determination of any application  

submitted pursuant to the Planning Acts or under the Licensing Act 2003 or the 
Gambling Act 2005, and  

 
3.48.3 the decision being reported to the next meeting of the relevant Committee and the 

next meeting of Strategy and Resources Committee. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 10
Appendix A



This page is intentionally left blank



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
 

REGISTER OF URGENT 
DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL CONSTITUTION 
– Part 3 Annexe 2: Officer Delegations – 

Chief Executive 

 
Reference No:               
 

 
 
1) SUBJECT:   
Urgent works to Lynmouth Esplanade sea wall 
 
2) REQUESTED DECISION: 
That the urgent works outlined below are carried out and that the normal Contract 
Procedure Rules are waived in order to award the contract as detailed. 
 
That the Capital Programme be amended to reflect the award  
 
 
3) STATEMENT OF THE REASONS FOR THE REQUEST AND WHY IT IS 

URGENT: 
The Esplanade wall was built in the 1890s and forms part of the structure of the 
Esplanade Car Park owned by the Council but managed by Lynton TC under the 
agency agreement. 
 
The wall has been damaged during the storms earlier in the year which has resulted 
in a partial collapse at tarmac level within the car park.  A recent survey has shown 
more extensive damage with further cracks and pointing and bedding having been 
flushed out. 
 
Repairs will include rebuilding elements, stitching cracks and rebidding and 
repointing stonework.  It is feared that without urgent works taking place, further 
damage will arise. 
 
The deadline for Strategy and Resources committee on the 1st June has passed and 
the works should be underway during the period of better weather.  It is felt that a 
decision through the urgent decision route is more appropriate.   
 
 
4) FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  (NOTE: Please state if there are any financial 

implications.  If so, state whether there are sufficient funds within the agreed 
budget.  If there are insufficient funds please state how the decision will be 
financed). 

 
Officers have obtained 3 quotes which range from £49,208 to £113,913.  A capital 
budget exists for repairs to car parks and it is suggested that funds are drawn from 
that budget.  It is also suggested that the lowest tender of £49,208 is accepted. 
 

Page 35

Agenda Item 10
Appendix B



5) ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED: 
 
We could decide not to do the repairs but given that this is a sea wall, it is likely that 
further damage will be caused 
 
6) A RECORD OF ANY CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARED: 
 
None 
 
7) A NOTE OF ANY DISPENSATION IF GRANTED: 
 
None 
 
8) LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS (but not including published works or those 

which disclose exempt or confidential information (as defined in paragraph 10.4 
and 10.5 of the Access to Information Procedural Rules Part 4 of the Constitution): 

 
Survey 
 
10) CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN: 
 

The following have been consulted on this urgent decision: 
 

Consultee Consulted 
Yes/No 

Date 

Leader of Council (or Deputy Leader) Y  

Chair of Committee (with the 
Authority to take the decision) 

(or Vice-Chair) 

  

Lead Member Y  

Ward Member(s) Y  

Head of Service (name)   

Finance Y  

Legal Y  

 
 
11) OFFICER REQUESTING URGENT DECISION TO BE TAKEN BY THE CHIEF   

EXECUTIVE: 
Jon Triggs 
 
12) APPROVED BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE:  YES or NO 
 
 
13) DATE OF DECISION:  
 
27 May 2020 

Page 36

Agenda Item 10
Appendix B



 
14) CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
15) DATE TO BE PRESENTED TO STRATEGY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE: 
 
6 July 2020 

 
GUIDANCE NOTES 
 
NOTE:  
 
PROCEDURE FOR URGENT DECISIONS: 
 
1. Completed form to be passed to the Chief Executive following consultation with 

the interested parties.  
 
2. If a decision is specific to a Ward, efforts should be made to ascertain the views of 

the local Councillor (s). 
 

3. The Chief Executive will make his decision. 
 
 
PROCEDURE FOR URGENT DECISION MAKING AS PER THE CONSTITUTION  
 
Officer Delegations: the Chief Executive: 
 
Urgent Decision Making  
 
3.48 To take a decision on any matter falling within the remit of any Committee in 

cases of urgency where it is not reasonably practicable to obtain prior approval  
of a Committee SUBJECT TO:  

 
3.48.1 the prior consultation, where practicable, with the Leader or Deputy Leader and 

the Chair or Vice Chair of the relevant Committee, and  
 
3.48.2 the proviso that this power will not extend to the determination of any application  

submitted pursuant to the Planning Acts or under the Licensing Act 2003 or the 
Gambling Act 2005, and  

 
3.48.3 the decision being reported to the next meeting of the relevant Committee and the 

next meeting of Strategy and Resources Committee. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 10
Appendix B



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 1 June 2020 (attached).
	7 Homelessness Update and Temporary Accommodation Pods
	8 Approval and Release of Section 106 Conservation Area Fund for Fremington Quay Wall Repair Project Phase 1
	9 Approval and Release of Section 106 Public Open Space Funds - Kings Nympton
	10 Urgent Decisions Taken by the Chief Executive
	urgent-decision Cycling and pedestrianisation consultation
	2020.07.06 urgent-decision Esplanade Car Park


